
 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Cabinet 

   

Meeting Date: 
 
 Monday 21st July 2014 

   

Time: 
 

 5.30 pm 

   

Venue: 
 
 Rooms 5, 6 & 7 - 17th Floor, City Hall 

   

Members: 
 
 Councillors: 
 

 

  Philippa Roe (Chairman) 
Heather Acton 
Nickie Aiken 
Ed Argar 
Daniel Astaire 
Melvyn Caplan 

 
Also Attending: Tim Mitchell 
 

Danny Chalkley 
Robert Davis 
Rachael Robathan 
Steve Summers 
 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda 
 
Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the 
ground floor reception at City Hall from 5.00pm.   
 
If you have a disability and require any special assistance 
please contact the Committee Officer (details listed below) in 
advance of the meeting. 
 

   

T
 

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Mick Steward. 
 
Tel: 020 7641 3134; Email: msteward@westminster.gov.uk 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Head of Legal & Democratic Services in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.  WELCOME  

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the 
existence and nature of any personal or prejudicial interests in 
matters on this agenda.  
 

 

3.  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 2) 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 7 July 2014.  
 

 

4.  BETTER CITY, BETTER LIVES - FURTHER REFORM OF 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES IN WESTMINSTER 

(Pages 3 - 20) 

 Report of the Chief Executive.  
 

 

5.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN 
CONSIDERS URGENT 

 

 
 
Peter Large  
Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
11 July 2014 
 



 

 

 

           
CITY OF WESTMINSTER 

 
CABINET MEETING – 7 July 2014 

 
MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 

 
Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet held at 6.30pm on Monday 7 July 2014 in 
Committee Rooms 5, 6 and 7, 17th Floor, Westminster City Hall, 64 Victoria Street, 
London, SW1E 6QP 
 
Cabinet Members Present: Councillors Philippa Roe (Chairman), Heather Acton, 
Ed Argar, Daniel Astaire, Melvyn Caplan, Danny Chalkley, Robert Davis, Rachael 
Robathan and Steve Summers. 
 
Also Present: Councillor Tim Mitchell 
 
1.    INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Councillor Philippa Roe, the Leader of the Council, welcomed those present, 

particularly Councillor Heather Acton to her first Cabinet meeting. 
 
2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 
2.1      There were no Declarations of Interest. 
 
3. MINUTES 
 
3.1 RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on Monday 24 February 

2014 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman 
accordingly. 

 
4. FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2013-2014 (see report of the City Treasurer) 
   
4.1 Steven Mair, City Treasurer, introduced the report which set out the strong 

financial position.  It was noted that the financial position had continued to 
improve steadily throughout the year, culminating in an overall surplus of      
£5M, with General Fund Reserves being strengthened by £3M to close at 
£35M. 

 
4.2 The City Treasurer also reported a massive improvement in preparing the 

Annual Outturn, with the accounts having been published three months in 
advance of last year and 3 months in advance of the statutory deadline. 

 
4.3 Councillor Melvyn Caplan, Cabinet Member for Finance, Corporate & 

Customer Services, thanked Anna D'Alessandro, Deputy Director of Corporate 
Finance, and John Ogden, Head of Financial Management & Control, for 
producing the accounts by 30 June, which represented a significant change 

 

MINUTES 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

and improvement. The Cabinet Member highlighted the savings that had been 
achieved during difficult financial times, with 93% of targets in the Savings 
Programme having been directly delivered. 

 
4.4 Councillor Caplan also commented on the slippage in the Capital Programme, 

and acknowledged that more work was needed to correctly prioritise which 
projects went ahead, and to understand at an early stage which may have 
slipped so resources could be reprioritised if needed.  

 
4.5 The Leader also wished to record her thanks to officers and Cabinet Members 

for their work in producing the report and for the delivery of a sound financial 
position which was within budget. . 

 
4.6 Resolved: That the outturn position for the 2013/14 financial year be noted. 
 
 Reason for Decision 
 
 The report sets out the outturn position for the 2013/14 financial year. 
 
5. CLOSE OF MEETING 
 
5.1 The meeting ended at 6.36pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

___________________________ ____________________________ 
CHAIRMAN:     DATE 

Page 2



 

 

Cabinet Report 
 
 

Decision Maker: Cabinet 

Date: 21 July 2014 

Classification: For General Release 

Title: Better City, Better Lives – Further Reform of Local 
Government Services in Westminster 

Wards Affected: All 

Policy Context: Better City, Better Lives; Reforming Public Services.  

Financial Summary: The proposals are planned to achieve savings of up 
to £1.5m in senior management across the three year 
period 2015/16 to 2017/18.  This arises from senior 
management restructure savings identified in the 
report in the areas of City Management, Corporate 
Services, Built Environment, Housing, Regeneration 
and Property. 
 
The proposals to re-organise the Council’s operating 
structure will contribute towards meeting the City 
Council’s reduction in its expenditure of £100m over 
the next 3 years. 

Report of:  The Chief Executive 

Cabinet Member portfolio:     The Leader of the Council 
 
 
1. Executive Summary 

1.1 Over the past three years, Westminster City Council has reduced its annual 
expenditure by £100m.  This has been achieved through a combination of 
sharing services (such as the Tri Borough initiative), driving out inefficiencies, 
focussing on back office savings, generating additional revenue and some 
reductions to front line services.  Reductions in central government grant 
funding mean that Westminster City Council will need to find a further £100m 
of savings over the next three year period from 2015 to 2018 and it is 
expected that the trend of funding reductions will continue into the next 
decade. 

1.2 This report sets out a range of measures to establish a new operating model 
which will place Westminster City Council on a more robust footing in order to 
address both the funding reductions and the changes that local government 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



 

 

will need to make to meet the growth in demand in some service areas.  The 
prioritisation of resources will support the delivery of the Better City, Better 
Lives vision and at the same time create a new, restructured, model for local 
government in the borough, which is founded on the principles of: 

• Reforming Public Services; 

• Supporting Economic Growth; and 

• Achieving more Connected Communities. 

1.3 The changes outlined in the report will be accompanied by a revamped 
internal change initiative ‘Better Together – the Westminster Way’ employee 
programme.  The revised programme, which is currently being developed by 
the Chief of Staff, will be launched in the Autumn and will establish a 
leadership and behavioural culture to enhance managerial reputation, 
engender a strong and shared approach to delivering services and provide 
better support for staff to deliver the savings in what will be a critical period for 
the City Council. 

1.4 In order to ensure the City Council has the right senior leadership team in 
place to move the organisation forward, the report recommends the abolition 
of the existing Strategic Executive Board and the creation of a new Executive 
Management Team (EMT), represented by Executive Directors.  EMT will 
need to be a strong, united management team that collectively leads the 
council.  They will work together to drive forward a range of departmental and 
cross-cutting initiatives which are required to ensure that the council’s changes 
are embedded in a sustainable way throughout the organisation. 

2. Recommendations 

 It is recommended that: 

1. The Cabinet authorises the Chief Executive to implement the restructure 
shown in Appendix 1 and outlined in Appendix 2, in consultation with the 
relevant Cabinet Members and the Cabinet Member for Finance Corporate 
and Customer Services. 

 
2. The establishment of a Tri Borough Corporate Services function (subject to Tri 

Borough partners’ agreement of the business cases to be reported to a future 
Cabinet meeting), be agreed 

 
3. The existing Built Environment and Housing, Regeneration and Property 

Directorates are disestablished and replaced by the creation of a new Growth, 
Housing and Planning Department. 

 
4. The existing City Management Directorate be revamped and revised as a City 

Management and Communities Directorate in recognition of its wider remit. 
 
5. An integrated City and Corporate Policy function, reporting to the Director of 

Communications, Policy and Performance, that works across Council services, 

Page 4



 

 

be established.  A further report detailing the proposed operational 
arrangements to be brought forward for consideration at a future Cabinet 
meeting. 

 
6. A further report outlining the required support for the delivery of the West End 

Partnership programme is prepared for consideration at a future Cabinet 
meeting. 

 
7. The Director of Human Resources is given authority to undertake the 

necessary consultation and ring fencing arrangements to deliver the proposed 
new structure, as shown in Appendix 1 and outlined in Appendix 2, and the 
Appointments Sub Committee is convened to make the necessary member 
level appointments, where  required by Standing Orders. 

 
8. Cabinet authorises the Chief Executive, Head of Legal Services, City 

Treasurer and Director of Human Resources to propose consequential 
changes to the Constitution and Financial Regulations, including the revised 
allocation of existing Officer delegations which arise from the implementation 
of the new operating model, and that these are, where appropriate, subject to 
the approval of the full Council via the General Purposes Committee. 

 
3. Reason for Decision   

3.1 The proposed new strategic framework and changes in the organisational 
structure will enable Westminster City Council to drive forward the public 
service reform agenda, facilitate greater economic growth, and achieve more 
connected and resilient communities.  The changes will also contribute to the 
City Council’s savings targets. 

4. Background 

4.1 The challenges currently facing local government as it enters the mid-point of 
the decade are immense.  The squeeze on public sector borrowing continues 
and the changes to the way in which local authorities are funded will place far 
greater reliance on the sector becoming more self-financing.  These 
challenges will continue over the remainder of the decade and well into the 
next.  As a consequence, Westminster City Council needs to be 
organisationally ‘fit for purpose’ in order to face these future challenges. 

 
4.2 Initially, the need to reduce our cost base by a figure of £100m by 2018 will be 

a major driver in how the organisation is structured.  To maintain the Council’s 
reputation as a leading authority for its efficiency, innovation and leadership 
across London – alongside its strong national reputation – will inevitably 
necessitate the City Council to make some tough choices and further reform 
the way it works. 

 
4.3 In creating a new ‘model for Local Government’ to meet these fiscal 

challenges, the Council will have to, in the longer term, establish a ‘deal for 
Westminster’ with government which will support greater financial devolution 
as well as more local flexibilities (as highlighted in the London Finance 
Commission’s report).  This new ‘reform agreement’ around how we deliver 

Page 5



 

 

services will require greater partnership working with stakeholders, a broader 
relationship with other London authorities and closer working with other public 
agencies.  To create and deliver additional revenues for Westminster, the City 
Council will also need to place a greater emphasis on place shaping and 
growth. 

 
4.4 At the same time, to ensure that public services are effective, efficient and 

locally responsive, the City Council needs to make these relevant and less 
bureaucratic to residents, visitors and people working within Westminster.  
Instead of a blanket service offer, we must ensure that services are targeted at 
prevention rather than just need.  We can help support people to become 
more productive and less dependent on council services.  As a result of 
changes to the City Council’s cost base, it will become increasingly important 
to create a financial case that utilises the whole of the public purse (as in the 
case of future funding of adult social care) more effectively rather than just rely 
on local authority funding alone. 

 
4.5 As part of the journey to achieve a more efficient organisation, we will need to 

adjust and condense the Council’s operating model.  Inevitably in having to 
reduce our costs base by £100m over the next three years, this will 
necessitate further efficiencies in head count and require different ways of 
working.  

 
4.6 Most notably this will result in redrafted portfolios of responsibility and new 

management units and departments.  We will have to reduce, starting with the 
top of the organisation, layers of management and support the Council’s 
various transformation projects, with a leadership and behaviours programme, 
to ensure that Westminster is fit for purpose. 

 
4.7 The City Council will need flexibility in the way it operates in order to redesign 

its service offer around both the individual and where appropriate, to meet the 
challenges of complex cohorts of people that use our services.  Building on 
work the City Council has already successfully delivered by promoting early 
intervention and working more closely with partners across the public sector, 
we should be able to establish a model of services which brings local services 
and decisions together across agencies, to tackle the needs of our 
communities more appropriately.  Whether this is in areas of Social Care, 
Children’s Social Services or allowing communities to do much more for 
themselves, we will have to provide better connection between agencies and 
partners, in order to do things once rather than repeatedly going back to try 
and fix things.  In short, we must challenge cause and effect and significantly 
reduce demand. 

 
4.8 To summarise, over the coming years the City Council will need to: 
 

• Find innovative ways of raising further capital and revenue funding.  To achieve 
this we must better coordinate our work with investors, developers and 
stakeholders to grow the Westminster economy – ensuring the City Council 
benefits from the upside of economic growth including a greater return on 
Business Rates (NNDR); 

Page 6



 

 

• Prioritise resources so that these are aligned and prioritised towards supporting 
the delivery of the City Council’s Better City, Better Lives vision, and address 
the future budget reductions and demographic pressures; 

 

• Create a new ‘model for Local Government’, including the establishment of a 
‘deal’ for Westminster with central Government for greater financial devolution, 
as well as more local flexibilities; 

 

• Work more collaboratively with our partners to reduce demand and help 
communities more independently support themselves. 

 
4.9 In order to deliver these objectives and meet this range of challenges, the City 

Council’s organisational structure will need to change. It is proposed that the 
new structure therefore focuses our efforts on three pillars of activity around 
Public Sector Reform, driving Growth and creating Better Connected 
Communities. 

 
Reforming Public Services 

 
4.10 Following discussions with central Government, there is an opportunity for 

Westminster City Council and our Tri Borough partners to work with central 
Government to contribute to the next Comprehensive Spending Review 
(CSR), by co-designing services and in the process, allowing local authorities 
more control over spending in their area.  Supporting and informing the 
development of national policy will be critical to ensuring that the City Council 
has the levers to deal with both current and future demand on its services as 
well as associated costs in a more integrated way.  If this opportunity is to be 
fully developed, we will need to reorganise our services and working practices 
on a more thematic basis. 

 
4.11 To reduce demand we will need to create models of working that are both 

effective and efficient. This will necessitate greater cross department working 
including establishing ‘virtual teams’ to tackle a number of thematic issues 
such as Troubled Families and entrenched worklessness.  By creating the 
most effective combination of professional roles, we can also merge some 
specialist functions where there is evidence for doing so.  We must challenge 
our services to see how well they work for people who really need help, rather 
than provide a universal offer which extends costs and actually generates 
demand into the City Council through multiple front doors.  This can be 
resolved by, for example, ensuring help and intervention is provided at the 
right time by driving forward plans to create a single assessment and 
identification processes across public and community services. 

 
4.12 As part of this new approach the City Council will need to look at outcome 

based commissioning models to better ensure strong price competition and 
better transfer of risks through contracts to third parties.  Making sure delivery 
by service providers is ‘joined up’ with these partners will also improve 
opportunities to target the more difficult to reach members of our community.  
Indeed, Westminster City Council has a strong record of joining up services for 
complex cohorts.  Our family Recovery Project demonstrated how a multi-

Page 7



 

 

agency approach could save £2 for every £1 invested and turn troubled 
families lives around.  This model informed the roll out of the national troubled 
families programme and contributed to a strong evidence base to support 
outcome based commissioning.  We have since established a Payment by 
Results methodology to commission a two year programme that will achieve a 
10% reduction in reconviction rates and reduce local spending on tackling re-
offending reduced by up to £6.1 million over five years. 

 
4.13 The City Council’s partnership-working with other agencies will also need to 

increase in order to deal with the failure of demand across other public 
services.  The proposed new operating model and revised approach to 
partnership working will be critical to the future of a range of local authority 
services, particularly Adult and Children’s Services.  The City Council will need 
to work with partners such as the NHS, Clinical Commissioning Groups, GPs 
and schools to consider how the City Council can manage and reduce 
demand from what is often the same cohort. 

 
Growth 

 
4.14 The restructure outlined in Appendices 1, 2 and 3 will ensure that the City 

Council is better positioned to secure greater revenue returns to support its 
core activities, by providing more tailored support to businesses in the city, 
driving up competitiveness and in return securing a greater share of business 
rates and other uplifts in values within the local economy. 

 
4.15 With responsibility for the heartland of the national economy, and by being 

located at the centre of a global city, there is a real opportunity for the City 
Council to secure a greater share of the upside of economic growth as part of 
a ‘deal for Westminster’, based upon the recently announced London 
settlement on Growth, Employment and Fiscal Devolution.  With both of the 
major national political parties having announced commitments to further 
financial devolution, continuing to seek access to a greater share of the growth 
in Business Rates and other taxes, such as Stamp Duty, would ensure that 
Westminster City Council is able to secure additional revenues and continue 
to grow its local economy. 

 
4.16 In order to effectively support business and facilitate increased opportunities 

for economic growth, the City Council’s policies for improving competitiveness 
and increasing opportunities for growth need to be aligned with a new spatial 
framework that covers planning, investment, infrastructure, transport and 
place management services.  We will need to protect the living heritage of our 
city to ensure that our current assets are fit for purposes going forward into the 
future. To properly support a balanced environment and economy, the 
necessary planning decisions must at the same time ensure that 
Westminster’s environment is safe, clean, and green and supports the amenity 
services necessary to improve the quality of life of our residents. 

 
4.17 In due course the City Council will also need to ensure that sufficient 

resources are prioritised and allocated towards supporting the work of the 
West End Partnership.  Over the past year the Partnership has become 

Page 8



 

 

integral to the development and creation of a sustainable vision for growth in 
the area which is at the very heart of our economy.  The type and quantity of 
support will be subject to a separate report to Cabinet and will depend on the 
outcome of the ongoing visioning work, and discussions regarding costs being 
shared with our partners. 

 
 Connected Communities 
 
4.18 In order to deliver our shared ambitions to create more connected 

communities, Westminster City Council will need to reprioritise resources 
towards developing a more responsive and less bureaucratic offer to our 
residents; an offer which is also targeted towards prevention and helping 
reduce demand.  This approach will ensure that local people are able to gain 
their share of growth by accessing the numerous employment opportunities in 
London, in the process reducing dependency, improving health outcomes and 
creating more resilient communities.  For example, an average Employment 
Support Allowance claimant currently costs public services and estimated 
£8,831, resulting in a total cost to the Westminster taxpayer of £9.85m per 
annum.  Supporting this cohort into sustainable employment can generate the 
evidence required to underpin future joint investment agreements with the 
Department for Work and Pensions and other partners (such as Clinical 
Commissioning Groups) which will return a proportion of the costs to the City 
Council and create a more sustainable funding model. 

 
4.19 Not all areas are uniform and some localities within Westminster by necessity 

require more support than others.  Some of our communities and ‘villages’ 
have a particular uniqueness that requires certain services to be tailored and 
targeted towards supporting their particular circumstances.  As a result, we will 
need to establish a new model of area working that begins to target a more 
‘joined up’ approach to services; working together to tackle the problems 
facing some of our more complex residents. This will need to be combined 
with providing a stronger regulatory and enforcement framework to ensure that 
residents have the right social infrastructure and amenities that enhances their 
living experience. 
 
Organisational Design 
 

4.20 The full details of the proposed new operating model are set out in 
Appendices 1, 2 and 3.  To improve the coordination of our services and 
deliver the objectives set out above, it is recommended that the City Council 
establish a new Growth, Housing and Planning Department, that will provide a 
stronger, integrated offer to support the economic growth ambitions of the City 
Council.  This will include a dedicated Economic Development Unit who will be 
tasked to support the supply side of growth. 

 
4.21 The City Council has already made significant progress in supporting 

communities to self-identify by geographic area through the establishment of 
Neighbourhood Forums and through facilitating the creation of eight Business 
Improvement Districts.  The new structure will drive this work forward, 
particularly the creation of a new area-based working model to be delivered 

Page 9



 

 

through a revamped City Management and Communities department.  The 
new model will see services provided on a locality basis; services which are 
more responsive, less bureaucratic and targeted towards prevention as a 
means to reduce demand. 

 
4.22 This report also recommends that Cabinet agrees, in principle, to the creation 

of a new Corporate Policy function.  The work to establish the new team is 
currently being taken forward by a review of policy development.  The review 
will identify where specialist staff are closely involved in the delivery of front 
line services, and which staff could benefit from being better co-ordinated in 
an integrated corporate team.  A full report with the findings of the review and 
recommendations will be brought to Cabinet for consideration in the autumn. 

 
4.23   In order to meet the financial challenge, it is also recommended that the City 

Council undertakes a further rationalising of the Tri Borough ‘back office’ 
arrangements to reduce our Corporate Services costs. Detailed business 
plans for the proposed Corporate Services will be the subject of a separate 
report to each Tri Borough partner authority in the autumn. 

 
4.24 Finally, in order to established and embed greater cross-cutting and thematic 

working, this report recommends a closer alignment of Executive Directors, 
Departmental and Cabinet Member responsibilities, including the 
establishment of a new Executive Management Team (EMT) of Senior 
Directors.  The new EMT will, under the Chief Executive, be tasked with 
ensuring services are delivered in a more integrated way whilst providing 
greater visibility to Cabinet Members about lines of accountability and 
responsibility within the management of the Council.  The new EMT will, on 
behalf of the Cabinet, be integral to redesigning services, ensuring that these 
are targeted, effective, delivered in partnership with stakeholders (where 
appropriate), and meet the challenges of reducing demand and the costs of 
our complex high cost cohorts. 

 
 Summary 
 
4.25 Westminster City Council has a strong record for leading change, delivering 

efficiencies and having effective value for money services. As a result, the 
organisation is in a strong position to use this experience to positively meet 
the challenges facing local government. 

 
4.26  The proposed strategic framework and changes in the organisational structure 

of the City Council will help to build on past successes and maintain 
Westminster’s national reputation as a leading authority. Delivering what is a 
complex agenda and new ways of working, will necessitate a strong 
organisational capacity at the level just below Executive Director. 

 
4.27  Some of this capacity is already contained (and will be maintained) within the 

City Council, most notably around areas of Planning and City Management, 
Property, Waste and Sport and Leisure. However, it is also recognised that 
some operational areas, such as Housing, may need strengthening along with 
Economic Development. Ensuring we have, where appropriate, the right 

Page 10



 

 

professional, technical and managerial capacity will be essential. An early 
review of this capacity and the managerial competencies necessary to deliver 
the City Council’s ambition will form part of the detailed ‘design’ of the next 
tiers of operational structure. 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 
5.1 The proposals are planned to achieve savings of up to £1.5m in senior 

management across the three year period 2015/16 to 2017/18.  This arises 
from senior management restructure savings identified in the report in the 
areas of City Management, Corporate Services, Built Environment, Housing, 
Regeneration and Property. 

 
6. Legal Implications 
 
6.1 Section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972 empowers the Council to 

appoint such Officers as it thinks fit.  Section113 allows authorities to share its 
officer resource, by agreement. Approval to enter into a formal S113 
agreement in respect of corporate services will be included in the business 
case report to be submitted to a future meeting. 

 
6.2  Standing Order 51 provides that Chief and Deputy Chief Officers will normally 

be appointed, and dismissed, by the Council’s Appointments Sub Committee. 
As necessary the Sub Committee wil be convened to carry out this function.  

 
6.3  The proposals in this report will upon implementation require changes to the 

current scheme of Officer delegations to be undertaken.  At this time, it is 
unclear whether this will require any further delegations.  Should further 
delegations be required, an additional report will be brought to Council, but in 
the meantime it is intended that any changes will be made by the Chief 
Executive and Head of Legal under delegated authority. 

 
6.4  The structure chart will be included in the Council’s constitution to reflect the 

new Council Senior Officer structure. 
 
7. Consultation 
 
7.1 Once a decision is made by the Cabinet formal consultation with staff and 

their recognised trade union representatives will be carried out in accordance 
with the Council’s statutory obligations, as required under appropriate 
employment law provisions, primarily the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992 and the Employment Rights Act 1996 as amended 
and in line with Council policy and Tri Borough HR principles where 
appropriate. 

 

If you have any queries about this Report or wish to inspect any of the 
Background Papers  please contact: Simon Gartshore, External Relations 

Manager, x2799 or sgartshore@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 11



 

 

Other Implications 
 

1. Resources Implications 

The details of the resources required to establish the new Operating Model will be set 
out in a further report to Cabinet. 

2. Business Plan Implications 

The new Operating Model will ensure the City Council’s resources are most 
appropriately deployed and targeted towards delivering the Better City, Better Lives 
strategic vision for Westminster. 

3. Equalities Implications 

The public sector equality duty has been considered by officers in the development of 
the proposals. This is an internal change which does not affect services. We are not 
aware of any equality implications but an Equalities Impact Assessment will be 
carried out. 

4. Staffing Implications 

The staffing implications are set out in paragraphs 4.20 to 4.24 of the report. 

5. Communications Implications 

A tailored communications plan will be developed to support the proposed 
restructure, outlining the reasons for undertaking the proposed restructure, and 
supporting the Chief of Staff to create and embed the ‘Better Together – the 
Westminster Way’ across the organisation. 

 

Appendix 1 – Headline structure at Director-level 

Appendix 2 – Headline indicative next tier structure 

Appendix 3 – Reporting lines by Cabinet Portfolio 

Page 12



City Treasurer Chief Executive 

Director of 

Communications, 

Policy & Performance 

Chief of Staff

Executive Director 

City Management 

& Communities 

Executive Director 

Growth, Housing & 

Planning

Executive Director 

Corporate & 

Commercial 

Services

Executive Director 

Children’s Services

Executive Director 

Adult Services

Director of 

Public Health

Head of

Parking

Operational 

Director of Public 

Protection & 

Licensing

Operational 

Director of 

Housing

Operational 

Director of 

Planning

HR Legal

Head of 

Waste, Parks & 

Cemeteries

Head of 

Sports & Leisure

Head of

Highways & 

Transport

Head of 

Area Working & 

Neighbourhoods

Head of 

Economic 

Development

Head of 

Property & Estates

Head of Strategic 

Transportation & 

Infrastructure

Head of 

Special Projects

ICT Procurement

Pensions & 

Treasury

Customer Services

Revenues &  

Benefits

Libraries *

Head of 

Libraries*

Contracted Services Delivery

* A decision on the 

location/management 

reporting lines for Libraries 

will be determined as part 

of the Corporate Services 

Report

Appendix 1

P
age 13



Executive Director – City 
Management & Communities

Operational 
Director of Public 

Protection & 
Licensing

Head of Waste, 
Parks & 

Cemeteries

Head of 
Highways & 
Transport

Head of Parking
Head of Sports & 

Leisure

Head of Area 
Working & 

Neighbourhoods

Head of 

Libraries*

• Community Protection

• CCTV

• Westminster Wardens

• Street Management Centre

• Licensing

• Premises Licensing enforcement

• Env. Health (residential and commercial)

• Noise

• Mortuary

• Pest Control

• Trading Standards

• Special Events & Filming

• Contingency Planning

• Waste & recycling

• Street cleansing incl.

winter service plan

• Parks & cemeteries

• Roads Management &

inspection function

• Statutory utilities liaison

• Third party claims

• Highways Licensing

/permits

• Contract management for:

Ø Maintenance

Ø Highways schemes delivery

Ø Public lighting & mech.

electrical services

Ø Gulley maintenance

Ø Traffic Management Orders

Ø Audit & compliance

• Programming & coordination of works

• Asset & inventory management

• Risk register

• Contract management for: 

Ø On street (Marshals)

• Business processes 

and technology

• Appeals & challenges

• Suspensions & permits

• Service development

• Operational policy

• Contract management for: 

Ø Sports facilities

• Sports Development &

School Sport

• Active Westminster

partnership

• Outdoor Education

(Sayers Croft)

• Intelligence tasking & operational coordination

• Governance

• Local priority setting

• Stakeholder engagement

• Performance Management and BI

• Business Planning

• Cross cutting themes

• Operational public realm policy

* Subject to Tri-borough review

Appendix 2

P
age 14



Executive Director – Growth, 
Housing & Planning

Operational 
Director of 
Housing

Operational 
Director of 
Planning

Head of 
Economic 

Development

Head of 
Property & 

Estates

Head of 
Strategic 

Transportation 
& Infrastructure

Head of 
Special 
Projects

• Housing Regeneration

• HRA

• Supporting People &    

Homelessness

• Affordable & Private Sector 

Housing

• City West / RSLs

• Development Control

• Area Teams

• Design Services

• District Surveyor

• Listed Buildings

• Building Control

• Property Investment

• Operational Estates

• Corporate property projects

• Commercial estate

• Strategic Transport Issues

• Cross Rail (1, 2) 

• Bridges

• Energy Infrastructure

• TFL

• Support for Business

• Strategic economic Framework

• Worklessness & Employability

• Skills

• London LEP

• Growth / WEP

• FEI / HEI

• TBD

Appendix 2

P
age 15



Director – Communications, 
Policy & Performance

Chief Advisor 

City Policy

Head of Corporate 
Strategy

Head of Cabinet 
Secretariat & 

Member Services

Head of 
Programmes and 

Performance

Head of 
Campaigns

WestCo Head of Events

• Planning

• Housing

• Transport

• Sustainability 

• Environment

• Licensing

• Corporate Policy

• Government Relations

• Economic & Public

Services Reforms

• Public Affairs

• Research

• Voluntary Sector

• Business Intelligence

• Area forums

• Cabinet Support

• Support to Leader

• Member Services

• Ward budgets

• Performance

• Programme Support

• Business Analysts

• Customer & Digital Services

• Media Relations

• Campaigns

• Internal Comms

• Marketing

Appendix 2

P
age 16



Executive Director –
Corporate & 

Commercial Services

Legal HR ICT Procurement
Pensions 
& Treasury

Customer 
Services

Revenues 
& Benefits

Libraries*

* Subject to Tri-Borough review

Appendix 2

P
age 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet Portfolios          

 

APPENDIX 3 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Executive Director x 1 

Growth, Housing and Planning 

Executive Directors x 2 

Adults 

Children’s Services 

Public Health 

Executive Director x 1 

City Management & 

Communities 

Executive Director x 1 & City 

Treasurer 

 

Corporate Services HR 

Finance   ICT 

Procurement  Performance 

Legal   Equalities 

Customer Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LEADER 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CEX 

Chief Executive  Leader of the Council 

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for the Built 

Environment 

Cabinet Member for Housing, Regeneration, Business & 

Economic Development 

Cabinet Member for City Management, Transport and 

Infrastructure  

Cabinet Member for Public Protection 

Cabinet Member for Sports, Leisure and Open Spaces 

Cabinet Member for Sustainability and Parking 

Cabinet Member for Children & Young People 

Cabinet Member for Adults & Public Health 

Cabinet Member for Finance, Corporate & Customer Services 

Leader of the Council 

P
age 19



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Better City, Better Lives - Further Reform of Local Government Services in Westminster
	Appendices 1 and 2
	Appendix 3 Cabinet Portfolios


